Technical Assistance for Graphic Design Services

RFP##ED-08-R-0099

Questions and Answers 

September 12, 2008

Questions re: Cost
For the cost proposal, which task orders do we need to budget: 

IV. Task Orders (Page 4 -8) and/or V. Task Orders (Page. 8 - 10)?  

Task Orders sections IV and V: Should the Contractor provide labor costs for Tasks Orders section IV (21 product types) or for Task Orders section V (9 product types)? Please clarify the distinction between costing requirements for these two tables for purposes of this proposal.  
With regard to costing out each task, does this entail providing an estimated cost

for Tasks 1–5 as listed on pages 3 and 4; if so, how is the Contractor to determine

what Task Orders are associated with these tasks? Or is the Contractor to cost out the Task Orders under Attachment A (Statement of Work)—section IV, page 4, and section V, pages 8–9; if so, does the Contractor also cost out the quantity of Task

Orders indicated for each product type under Task Orders sections IV and V?  

Should we include pricing on all the tasks listed under sections IV and V or just labor rates for our various creative services?

Are we to provide cost information for all Task Orders identified in section IV (starting on page 4 of the SOW) and section V (starting on page 8 of the SOW) or just the Task Orders identified in V or just a subset of the Task Orders identified in V where the government would specify the Task Orders to be budgeted.

I'm presenting a fourth question in regards to #ED-08-R-0099. 

Under V. TASK ORDERS – Projects to Begin Following Contract Award:  Are these task orders in addition to the task orders listed in IV.TASK ORDERS?

ANSWER:  Tasks 1-5 as listed on pages 3 and 4 are narratives of itemized tasks listed on pages 8 and 9.  Please budget for SOW IV. Task Orders (Page. 4 -8).  SOW V. Task Orders (Page. 8 – 10) are a subset of Orders listed in SOW IV. Task Orders.  Orders in section SOW V. are orders that will be executed upon award as stated in SOW.  

Questions re: Task Orders

Please clarify what is meant by “Task Order contract” as stated in the first paragraph on page 2 of Attachment A (Statement of Work). See answer below.

 If the contract will be awarded as Fixed Price, will all of the Task Orders issued be fixed-type Task Orders, or could there be other Task Order types, such as T&M or CPFF?  

ANSWER: Contract will be awarded as a fixed price contract.  All the Task Orders will be fixed-type Task Orders based on contractor’s cost proposal.  

Is it recommended I include travel expenses as an optional task? 

ANSWER: No, optional task refer to project work; design.

Would this fixed price contract be an already stated NIFL amount?

or is to be fixed according to the winning offeror’s proposal. 

ANSWER: Contract will be awarded as a fixed price contract.  All of the Task Orders will be fixed-type Task Orders based on contractor’s cost proposal.  The total cost of each task order and cost to complete will total firm price contract. 

According to Pg. 4 of the SOW, the task orders listed are the minimum that will be

assigned. By what process would additional task orders be assigned within the fixed price

award?    

ANSWER: Additional Task Orders are as needed and determined by Contracting      Officer.  

I don't understand the difference between IV and V Task Orders. Can you clarify? ANSWER: Please review Section V. of SOW

Questions re: Page Numbers 

 Please clarify if the technical proposal page limit is 15 or 16 pages (plus resumes/references):  

The revised cover letter in Amendment 1 indicates a 12-page limit while the technical proposal instructions (Attachment C) define a 15-page limit.  Could you please confirm which is correct?

Is the page limit for the technical proposal 12 pages or 15 pages?  It’s listed both ways

In the evaluation cover letter ("ED08R0099_EvalCoverLetterFinal.doc"), it is stated that the technical proposal is not to exceed 12 pages double spaced with a provision for a section describing the management plan for the tasks described in the Statement of Work, which is not to be counted toward the 12 page limit and not to exceed 2 pages double spaced; however, in Attachment C, it is stated that the technical proposal is not to exceed 15 pages double spaced. Which of these statements is correct

If understanding correctly pages allowed per section are as indicated below.  Please clarify if this understanding is correct?
	Technical Approach
	12 pages

	Key Personnel
	2 pages (does not count in 12 page limit)

	Management Plan
	2 pages (not to be counted in page limit)

	Corporate Experience and Capability
	No page restrictions 

	Resumes
	No page restrictions (does not count in 12 page limit)

	Past Performance References
	No page restrictions (does not count in 12 page limit)


ANSWER TO ABOVE QUESTIONS: Please review revised cover letter dated August 27, 2008. 

Questions re: Period of Performance 

Please clarify the performance period for this contract.

· The first sentence of the synopsis states that the performance period is 2 years.

· The SOW, p. 2, first sentence, states that the performance period is 1 year. 

· The SOW, p. 10 describes the performance period as 1 year (September 30, 2008 through August 31, 2009), with three 1-year options. 

Under VI Performance Period on Pg. 10 of the SOW indicates the performance period goes through August 31, 2009, so what does that mean for the projects that are identified as having estimated due dates of September 2009 through December 2009? Will those only be assigned if one of the three one-year options is granted to the vendor? Or does the performance period only refer to the period in which task orders can be assigned? 

What is the "Period Performance" for this solicitation?  The Proposal Instructions 

which were not revised with the newly posted amendments) state that it is for 12 months. In contrary, the revised SOW (pg 10) states that it's from September 30, 2008 through August 31, 2009, with three one-year options.
ANSWER TO ABOVE QUESTIONS: The SOW, p. 10 describes the performance period as 1 year (September 30, 2008 through August 31, 2009), with three 1-year options.  Is correct Period of Performance.  
Does the addition of task orders mean the vendor is being granted one or more of the three one-year options? How is the price set for additional task orders &/or one-year options? 

ANSWER:  No. Optional years are negotiable by and between contractor and government. 

Question re: Contract:
The technical proposal must demonstrate that the offeror has experience in early childhood education or that a partnership is established with individuals with such expertise. What role will such a person play within each task order? 

ANSWER: Please review Revised Evaluation Criteria B.  Such experience is not applicable.
Who is the incumbent?

 ANSWER:   The current contractor is public record.  Potential contractors are free to perform research to obtain incumbent’s name and address.  

After the award of the contract, when is the start date? 

ANSWER: Award start date is the date contract is awarded.  

Questions re: Resume and Credentials: 
QUESTION: Is there a limit to the number of resumes that can be attached to the technical proposal?

ANSWER: Please review revised cover letter dated August 27, 2008.
Proposal Criteria, #4: Normally I submit case studies (photos and text, one project per page) of my firm's work to demonstrate past performance of similar projects, which clients find immensely useful. Do you recommend I do so with this proposal, and if so, will these pages be counted towards the max 12? If so, this will severely limit my ability to submit such work. 

ANSWER: No, work samples are not requested in this SOW. 

Questions re: text, photos, translation and editing in design development

Pg. 3, item 5.2 of the SOW assigns the task of acquiring stock photos. Are the costs of the images included in the fixed price of the contract or does the vendor recommend images and acquire them on behalf of NIFL to be reimbursed through some process? ANSWER: The vendor recommends images and acquires them on behalf of the Institute and with prior approval of the Institute.
Proposal Instructions:  Are tables, graphics, resumes, past performance references and any callout/highlight boxes to be double-spaced as well? ANSWER: Double spacing refers to most narrative and text. 

SOW (p. 3), Task 5.3—please clarify what is meant by “edits.” Will the contractor be responsible to edit text, or are the edits referred to those involving changes to graphic design and formatting? ANSWER: Edits refers to changes to graphic design and formatting.

Is the contractor responsible for proofreading the products? ANSWER: No, the Institute is responsible. 
Will text for the Spanish publications need to be proofread? ANSWER: The Institute will be responsible for editing and proofreading copy in both English and Spanish.
SOW (p. 3), Task 5—we understand that the Institute will provide all the written text to the contractor. Will the graphic designer be involved in planning the design with the Institute and/or authors before the products are written? If not, and the design requires additional or revised text, who will be responsible for providing the additional or revised text? ANSWER: The Institute will provide all original and revised text to the designer. In some instances, the designer’s input will be needed prior to products being written and developed. 

Several of the tasks have estimated due dates in September 08, but the proposal process will not be completed in time. Is this schedule flexible? ANSWER: In some instances, yes. The Institute will have to adjust dates for those projects designated for September 2008. 
Questions re: Planning and other meetings with the Institute:

1. What inclusions should be provided in the Summary Report following 
the Award Kick off meeting? ANSWER: The contractor’s summary notes; recommendations and next steps for moving forward with design projects and planning.
Questions re: Conflicts of Interest  

1. Revised Proposal Evaluation Criteria (Attachment B), Criteria 1.C references to “organizational and other conflicts of interest”.  Please provide an example of the type of conflict of interest you might anticipate under this graphic design Task Order. ANSWER: Any relationship you may have that would prevent you from performing contract.
Questions re: Product Review Process:

No timelines for the review and approval periods were provided/identified (beyond that there will be 4 reviews).  Does NIFL currently have a review process in place or timeframe set? ANSWER: A project timeline that will be developed for each product will include a review process. 

Will the selected vendor be able to determine and implement an agreed upon adequate review cycle, in the event there is not one already in place? ANSWER: The vendor and the Institute will work together on a mutually agreed upon review process and timeline for product completion. 

Task 5.1 states that a minimum of four initial design concepts must be submitted for review and feedback. Is this for each product?  ANSWER: Yes.

Or, do some products fall into a series of companion pieces in which the same design elements are used but modified slightly to distinguish between items in a series? ANSWER: Yes, the Institute will have occasion to produce companion pieces, which won’t likely require several rounds of design concepts and review.  

Questions re: Product Delivery: 

1. Will the text provided be final or will text edits need to be made during the design process as a part of the requested rounds of edits? ANSWER: In some instances, not most, the text for products may change; one example is the newsletter and products that aren’t peer reviewed.
Will the selected vendor be able to research and recommend various printers to reduce printing costs?  ANSWER: The Institute is required to use GPO to secure printing services. GPO brokers those agreements with printers.

Are there provisions for what should happen if more than 4 rounds of edits are requested?  ANSWER: The Institute doesn’t anticipate that more than four rounds would be required if there is clear direction and communication in place prior to design execution. Do these rounds include text edits/changes or do they only refer to the design? ANSWER: In limited instances, text edits can impact the design 

Many of the task orders specify charts and tables. These can vary greatly in complexity and amount of time necessary to prepare. Is there any way to specify what these will entail? ANSWER: The number and type of charts and graphs will vary from each project. The majority of Institute products (i.e. publications for parents, families, teachers, and caregivers) don’t include graphs and charts. These graphs and charts will include research findings/data.
Pg. 3, item 5.1 of the SOW assigns the task of 4 initial designs, so will NIFL select one of the designs and then only that design will be allotted up to 4 rounds of edits? Or will each of the 4 initial designs be allowed to be revised up to 4 times? ANSWER: The Institute will work with the designer to select one of the four designs if four rounds are needed; in most cases, an additional four designs after the selection is made is not needed.
For the mockup, can the file be optimized for electronic submission?  In other words, can the file sent be a copy of a higher resolution version with as many PDF features turned off as possible to reduce file size?  ANSWER: Yes, but depending on the product, a physical/hardcopy mockup may be necessary for review.
Since there are potentially overlapping task orders that could be returned with feedback for a final draft at the same time, will there be a provision for such cases in dealing handling the three-day turn around?  ANSWER: Yes
Are there specs for each task order so we can assess the level of effort required and potential impact of overlapping tasks? ANSWER: No, specs aren’t available
Pg. 2 of the SOW refers to reducing printing costs but for whom-NIFL or the vendor?  If for the vendor, are those costs to be figured into the fixed price or are they to be reimbursed to the vendor in addition to the pre-press production? ANSWER: Reducing costs for NIFL.
Also, when will we be receiving estimated product due dates for the task order products not immediately assigned at the time of the contract award? ANSWER: The focus now is on the list of projects that will be assigned at the time of the award. Others will be added as available for completion.

How much design will the larger documents entail? ANSWER: That will be determined by the specific project. Will they be mostly text and/or will there be many interest elements, such as graphs, charts, and images? ANSWER: Some projects, large and small, may include these elements.
For the first set of commissioned papers (7 of them) assigned at the time of contract award, will those be due mid-late September 2008 or 2009? This is not clear in the task order table. ANSWER: Those papers won’t all be available at the same time. There delivery may span several months from October 2008 – October 2009.
Task 5.1, 'four initial design concepts': normally my firm provides initial design concepts as indicated by the cover of a document and possibly one interior spread. It is not feasible to provide 4 concepts of an entire document, esp as several of these exceed 50 pages. Please advise. ANSWER: Four concepts of the entire document are not required. 
Using the Academic Research Findings Report as an example, would you require that the 4 design concepts include a cover and inside spread, or do you mean that each concept must incorporate all (up to) 200 pages of text and photos? ANSWER: The Institute would like to see the cover and a sample inside spread.
Can you be specific as to what needs to be included in the 'management plan' specified in #5 in the cover letter?ANSWER: This a detailed plan for how the offeror will staff and manage the Institute’s design projects. 

Questions on Graphic Standards and GPO:
Task 3: 'updating and maintaining graphic standards content': can you be more specific? I would need to know the type and extent of the updates in order to provide an estimate of hours, cost, etc.  ANSWER: The process may entail one meeting to review the Institute’s current style guide and current products, etc. to determine where and if updates to such things as colors, use and placement of logo, achieving a uniform look to our publications. 

How do I find out what the GPO guidelines are re: design software? I will need to know this in advance of preparing my proposals. ANSWER: The Platform most preferred by the printing industry is the Macintosh OSX.  The design software is Adobe Creative Suite CS3, which includes InDesign CS3, Photoshop CS3, Illustrator CS3 and Acrobat 9 Professional. 
What type of printing will be required by the tasks-offset, digital, color copies? I need to know this in advance as this will affect the files I prepare for GPO (task 5.6) ANSWER: GPO will provide printing guidelines via the Institute. The Institute can also provide opportunities for in-person or conf. call meeting with GPO customer service representatives. 

Task 4: can you clarify what a ‘product developer’ means? Is this necessary if all the products are reports, newsletters, and other printed materials? ANSWER: A product developer in this instance can mean the researcher or writer.
How many pages are in the Guide to Graphic Standards? ANSWER: About 6-10 pages.
Is the Guide to Graphic Standards available online for review? ANSWER: No, it is not.

Who is responsible for costs associated with print production and acquiring stock images?  ANSWER: GPO will handle print production. The use and acquisition of stock photos as needed, will be the responsibility of the designer working in conjunction with the Institute.
Is there a budget for this project that I can be made aware of in advance? ANSWER: No.
Proposal Criteria, #4: Normally I submit case studies (photos and text, one project per page) of my firm's work to demonstrate past performance of similar projects, which clients find immensely useful. Do you recommend I do so with this proposal, and if so, will these pages be counted towards the max 12? If so, this will severely limit my ability to submit such work. ANSWER: Please refer to guidelines and requirements for page count found in the cover letter.
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